8 =



Doc ID: 028946220012 Type: CRP Recorded: 07/28/2015 at 12:24:03 PM Fee Amt: \$26.00 Page 1 of 12 Workflow# 0000292741-0001 Buncombe County, NC Drew Reisinger Register of Deeds

BK 5338 PG 622-633

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE

Reference: Book 2314, Page 754

Return after recording to: James Lloyd Law Office, PO Box 948, Asheville, NC 28802

AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS OF TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

This Amendment to the Bylaws of Twin Brook Hills Homeowners' Association, Inc. is made this the 9th day of July, 2015 by the TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, TWIN BROOK HILLS SUBDIVISION was created by that *Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Twin Brook Hills* recorded in Book 2314, Page 754, *et seq.*, in the Buncombe County, North Carolina Registry, (hereinafter referred to as "the *Declaration*"); and

WHEREAS, TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., (hereinafter referred to as "the Association"), is the Association of the owners of the Lots within the Subdivision, referenced in Section III of the *Declaration*, and in the *Articles of Incorporation of Twin Brooks Hills Homeowners Association*, *Inc.*, which were filed on September 13, 2007 with the North Carolina Secretary of State; and

WHEREAS, Bylaws of Twin Brook Hills Homeowners Association, Inc., were approved by the original Director which are inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation of Twin Brooks Hills Homeowners Association, Inc. and the North Carolina Planned Community Act (a true and accurate copy of these Bylaws are attached hereto as Exhibit "A", which is hereby incorporated by reference); and

8

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 11 of said Bylaws provides for the amendment thereof by the vote of a majority of the Board of Directors of the Association, and

WHEREAS, at a duly held meeting of the Board of Directors, the majority of the Board of Directors of the Association has voted to amend the Bylaws as hereinafter set forth,

NOW THEREFORE the *Bylaws of Twin Brook Hills Homeowners Association, Inc.*, are hereby amended as follows:

I. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE II, SECTION 1.

Article II, Section 1 is amended by deleted said section in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new section:

Section 1. Principal place of Business. The principal place of business shall be: PO Box 2044, Weaverville, NC 28787.

II. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE II, SECTION 2.

Article II, Section 2 is amended by deleted said section in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new section:

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Registered Office.</u> The registered office shall be as listed with the North Carolina Secretary of State's Corporations division.

III. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE III, SECTION 1.

Article III, Section 1 is amended by adding the following sentence to end of said section:

"The Board of Directors is the executive board of the Association as provided by the North Carolina Planned Community Act (N.C. Gen. Stat. 47F-1-101 et seq.).

The remainder of Article III, Section 1 shall remain unchanged.

IV. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE III, SECTION 3.

Article III, Section 3 is amended by deleted the third sentence of said section which reads:

"Directors must be residents of the State of North Carolina.",

and replacing it with the following new third sentence:

"Directors must be an owner of at least one Lot within the Twin Brook Hills subdivision; provided however, only one owner of a lot may serve on the Board at any one time."

The remainder of Article II, Section 3 shall remain unchanged.

V. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE III, SECTION 4.

Article III, Section 4 is amended by deleted said section in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new section:

Section 4. Election. Directors will be elected by the members at the Annual Meeting of the members to replace a Director who has resigned, been removed or whose term is expiring.

VI. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE III, SECTION 6.

Article III, Section 6 is amended by deleted said section in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new section:

Section 6. <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled by the majority vote of the remaining Directors then in office. The term of a Director filling a vacancy in the office of a director expires at the next election of directors by the membership.

VII. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE V,

Article V, is amended by deleted said Article in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new Article V:

Article V. Members and Meetings of the Members.

Section 1. Membership. As provided in the North Carolina Planned Community Act (N.C. Gen. Stat. 47F-1-101 et seq.) [hereinafter referred to as the "Planned Community Act"], an Owner of a Lot shall become a Member of the Association upon taking title to the Lot and shall remain a Member for the entire period of ownership. If title to a Lot is held by more than one person, the membership shall be shared in the same proportion as the title, but there shall be only one (1) membership and one (1) vote per Lot. Membership does not include persons who hold an interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation, and the giving of a security interest shall not terminate the Owner's membership. Membership shall be appurtenant to each Lot and shall be transferred automatically by conveyance of that Lot and may be transferred only in connection with the transfer of title.

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Annual Meetings.</u> The regular annual meeting of the member shall be held in the month of May, at a time and place designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, and shall be called upon the request of a majority of the Board of Directors, or, upon the written request of Lot owners having ten percent (10%) of the votes in the Association.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or to cause to be delivered to the Lot Owners a notice of each annual or special meeting of the Association at least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to each annual or special meeting. The notice of any meeting must state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Declaration or Bylaws, any budget changes, and any proposal to remove a director or officer. In the case of a Special Meeting, the notice of the meeting shall state specifically the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is being called. Notices shall be delivered personally or mailed to each Owner of record at his Lot; if any Owner wishes notice to be given at an address other than his Lot, the Owner shall designate by notice in writing to the Secretary such other address. The mailing or delivering of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice.

Section 5. Waiver of Notice. Waiver of notice of a meeting of the Owners shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Owner may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Owners, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by an Owner, whether in person or by proxy, shall be deemed waiver by such Owner of the notice of the time, date, and place thereof, unless such Owner specifically objects to lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order. Attendance at a special meeting shall also be deemed waiver of notice of all business transacted thereat, unless objection to lack of notice is raised before the business, of which proper notice was not given, is put to a vote.

Section 6. Quorum. The presence of Owners entitled to ten percent (10%) of the eligible votes of the Association, in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum.

Section 7. Adjournment. Any meeting of the Owners may be adjourned from time to time by the President or Chairperson or by a vote of the Owners holding the majority of the votes represented at such meeting, regardless of whether a quorum is present. Any business which could be transacted properly at the original session of the meeting may be transacted at an adjourned session, and no additional notice of such adjourned session shall be required.

Section 8. Proxy. Any Member entitled to vote may do so by written proxy duly executed by the Member setting forth the meeting at which the proxy is valid. To be valid, a proxy must be filed with the Secretary prior to the opening of the meeting for which it is to be used and must be dated. No proxy shall be revocable except by written notice delivered to the Association before a meeting or, if at the meeting, to the person presiding. A member who has previously executed a written proxy may attend a meeting and revoke his or her previously executed proxy, and vote in person at said meeting, by informing the person presiding of their decision to vote in person.

Section 9. Vote by Written Ballot. In accordance with Section 55A-7-08 of the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, any action that may be taken at any annual, regular, or special meeting of members may be taken without a meeting if the Association delivers by mail or otherwise a written ballot to every member entitled to vote on the matter. BALLOTS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE DEADLINE INDICATED ON THE BALLOT

Section 10. Conduct and Business. Roberts Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the meeting, when not in conflict with the Declaration, Article of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or any ruling made by the person presiding over the meeting.

VIII. AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE VII, SECTION 11.

Article VII, Section 11 is amended by deleted said section in the Bylaws attached as Exhibit "A" and replacing it with the following new section:

Section 11. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended by the affirmative vote, written consent, or any combination of affirmative vote and written consent of the members holding a majority of the total votes entitled to be cast on the amendment. Notice of any meeting at which an amendment will be considered shall state that fact and the subject matter of the proposed amendment. A copy of each amendment duly passed shall be attached to a certificate certifying that the amendment was duly adopted as an amendment to these Bylaws, which certificate shall be executed by the President or Vice President of the Association and attested to by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Association with all the formalities of a deed. The amendment shall be effective only when the certificate and a copy of the amendment is recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, North Carolina.

IX. THE REMAINDER OF THE BYLAWS ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT "A" HERETO, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY ADDRESSED IN THIS AMENDMENT SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND UNAFFECTED BY THIS AMENDMENT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE UNDERSIGNED officers of TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., hereby certify that the above AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS OF TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. were duly adopted by the Association.

TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

By: Hailey Hirsch - President
Signature House
ATTEST:
By: Linda B. Horris Ofta - Secretary (Print Name)
Linea & Sharin Olila
Signature
(Affix corporate seal here)
NORTHICAROLINIA
NORTH CAROLINA BUNCOMBE COUNTY
DONCO WIDE COOK!
I, Karl Hosler, Notary Public for said County and State, certify that
Linda Betty Harris Olita personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he/she is the
Secretary of TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a North Carolina nonprofit corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the
foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its President, Hailey Hirsch, sealed with its corporate
seal, and attested by Linda Betty Harris Olita as its Secretary.
Witness my hand and official seal, this the $\frac{g+L}{2}$ day of $\frac{\int \omega dy}{2}$, 2015.
(Official Seal) ———————————————————————————————————
Notary Public
My commission expires November 16, 2019
Fr Gunission Co.
Page 6 of 6

BYLAWS OF TWIN BROOK HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I: Purposes. This Corporation does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit and shall be operated exclusively for public purposes, and the specific purposes for which it is formed are:

- (a) to own, acquire, convey, exchange, lease, mortgage, encumber, transfer upon trust, make gifts of or otherwise dispose of, all property, real or personal, to borrow money, contract debts and issue bonds, notes and debentures, and to secure the payment for performance of its obligations.
- (b) to receive property by gift, devise or bequest subject to the laws regulating the transfer of property by will, and otherwise to acquire and hold all property, real or personal, including shares of stock, bonds and securities of other corporations.
- (c) to enter into contracts with any person, firm, association, corporation, municipality, county, state or other body politic or agency of any of the foregoing.
- (d) to perform every act necessary or proper for the accomplishment of the objects and purposes enumerated or for the protection and benefit of the Corporation.
- (e) Notwithstanding any powers granted to this Corporation by its Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or by the laws of the State of North Carolina, no such activity shall be such as is not permitted (a) by a Corporation exempt from Federal Income Tax under §501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law); or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), and the Corporation shall not attempt to influence legislation, by propaganda or otherwise, not shall it intervene in, or participate in, any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office and no part of the net earnings of this Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any member or private individual and no member, director, or officer of the Corporation shall receive any pecuniary benefit from the Corporation except such reasonable compensation as may be allowed for services actually rendered to the Corporation and no private individual shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets on dissolution of the Corporation.

ARTICLE II. Offices.

Section 1. Principal Place of Business. The principal place of business shall be PO Box 214, Weaverville, North Carolina 28787.

Section 2. Registered Office. The registered office shall be located at 22 S. Pack Square, Ste. 402, Asheville, North Carolina.

ARTICLE III. Board of Directors.

- Section 1. General Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the general charge and control of the affairs, funds and property of the Corporation.
- Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors (a) to cause to be kept a full, true and accurate record of its acts and corporate affairs; (b) to supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Corporation, and to see that their duties are properly performed.
- Section 3. Number and Qualification. The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) members. Each Director shall hold office for a term of three years or until his earlier death, resignation, retirement, removal, disqualification or his successor is elected and qualifies. Directors must be residents of the State of North Carolina. Directors may be reelected for additional terms.
- <u>Section 4</u>. <u>Election</u>. Directors shall be elected to replace the Director who has resigned, been removed or whose tenure is then expiring, or has expired by the majority vote of Directors then remaining, even if only one remains.
- <u>Section 5.</u> Resignation. A director may resign from membership on the Board at any time by giving notice of his resignation in writing addressed to the president or secretary of the Corporation or by presenting his written resignation in person at an annual, regular or special meeting of the Board.
 - Section 6. Vacancies. By the Directors then remaining in office.
- Section 7. Removal. Directors may be removed from office by vote of the remaining board members on failure of a member to attend three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled board meetings, or upon the accumulative attendance at regularly scheduled board meetings following two (2) or below fifty (50%) percent.
- <u>Section 8.</u> Chairman. There may be a Chairman of the Board of Directors elected by the Directors from their number at any meeting of the Board. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and perform such other duties as may be directed by the Board.
- Section 9. Compensation. Directors as such will not receive compensation for their services, but may be compensated for rendering services to the Corporation in a capacity other than as a director.

ARTICLE IV. Directors Meetings.

Section 1. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall meet each year during the month of May for the purpose of organization, election of officers, and consideration of any other business that may properly be before the meeting. In addition, the Board of Directors may provide, by

resolution, the time and place within the State of North Carolina for the holding of additional regular meetings.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. Such meetings shall be held within the State of North Carolina.

Section 3. Notices; Waiver. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice. The person or persons calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors shall, at least two days before the meeting, give notice thereof by the usual means of communication. Such notice need not specify the purpose for which the meeting is called.

Section 4. Quorum. The majority of the number of the directors then holding office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V. Members. The Corporation shall have no members.

ARTICLE VI Officers.

Section 1. Titles. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers as it shall deem necessary, who shall have such authority and perform such duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board of Directors, except as otherwise specifically provided in these Bylaws.

Section 2. Election and Term. All officers shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, and each officer shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board and until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with these Bylaws. The officers shall be chosen by a majority vote of the Directors present and voting.

Section 3. Vacancies and Removal. Vacancies among the officers of the Corporation may be filled by vote of a majority vote of the Directors present and voting at any special or regular meeting of the Board and the officer so elected shall hold office until the next annual meeting of Directors. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board when in the judgment of the Board the best interests of the Corporation will be served thereby.

Section 4. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and, subject to control of the Board of Directors, shall supervise and control management of the Corporation in accordance with these Bylaws. The President shall, when present, unless the Board has chosen a Chairman other than the President, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. He shall sign, with any other proper officer, instruments which may be lawfully executed on behalf of the Corporation, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed,

and except where the signing and execution thereof shall be delegated by the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent. In general, he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 5. Vice President. The Vice President shall exercise the powers of the President during that officer's absence or inability to act. Any action taken by the Vice President in the performance of the duties of the President shall be presumptive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the President at the time action was taken. The Vice President shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all funds and securities belonging to the Corporation and shall receive, deposit or disburse the same under the direction of the Board of Directors; provided, that the Board may appoint a custodian or depository for any such funds or securities, and provide upon whose signature or authority such funds may be disbursed or transferred.

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep accurate records of the acts and proceedings of all meetings of the Board of Directors. He shall give or cause to be given all notices required by law and by these Bylaws. He shall have general charge of the corporate books and records and of the corporate seal, and he shall affix the corporate seal to any lawfully executed instrument requiring it. He shall sign such instruments as may require his signature and, in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Absence or Disability of Officers. In the event of the absence or disability of any officer, the Directors may delegate his powers and duties for the time being to any other officer.

Section 9. Books and Accounting. The Treasurer shall keep proper books of account and cause an annual audit of the Corporation's books to be made by a certified public accountant at the completion of each calendar year. He shall prepare an annual budget and an annual balance sheet statement and the budget and balance sheet statement shall be presented to the membership at its annual meeting.

ARTICLE VII. General Provisions.

Section 1. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall be circular and shall bear the name of the Corporation.

Section 2. Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given to any member of the Board under the provisions of these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, or attendance at the meeting referred to in such notice, shall be equivalent to the waiving of such notice.

Section 3. Checks. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money or notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or

officers or other individuals as the Directors may from time to time designate.

<u>Section 4.</u> <u>Bond.</u> The Board of Directors may by resolution require any or all officers, agents and employees of the Corporation to give bond to the Corporation, at the expense of the Corporation, with sufficient surcties, conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties of their respective offices or positions, and to comply with such other conditions as may from time to time be required by the Board.

Section 5. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

<u>Section 6.</u> Gifts. The Executive Committee may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise of real or personal property for the general purposes or for any special purpose of the Corporation.

Section 7. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the period ending on December 31 of each year.

Section 8. Books and Records. The books, records and papers of the Corporation shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by the Blue Ridge Area Authority, the North Carolina Department of Human Resources or duly appointed agent of either.

Section 9. Indemnity of Directors and Officers. Subject to any restrictions in the charter of the Corporation or applicable law, the Corporation may by action of the Directors indemnify any Director of officer or former Director of officer of the Corporation against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which he was made a party by reason of being or having been such Director or officer, except in relation to matters against which he shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding, to be liable for such negligence or misconduct in the performance of duty. The Corporation may by action of the Directors provide at the expense of the Corporation insurance protection to the Corporation and its Directors or officers as shall be permitted by applicable law and governmental regulations, including federal income tax laws and regulations relating to the tax exempt status of the Corporation and to the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation.

Section 10. Gender. As used in these Bylaws, the masculine pronoun shall include the ferminine, and the singular shall include the plural.

Section 11. Amendments. These Bylaws may be amended at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, by a vote of the majority of such directors, provided that those provisions of these Bylaws which are covered by the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation may not be amended except as provided in the Articles of Incorporation or applicable law; and provided further that no amendment shall ever be adopted which will alter the non-profit character of the Corporation.

<u>Section 12.</u> <u>Resolution of Conflicts.</u> In case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control.

Michael E. Elkins, Director